
1 
 

 Minutes of the Annual Town Meeting March 3, 2014 
 
The legal voters of Ripton met at the Community House on Monday, March 3, 2014 to act upon articles 1-7 of the 
2014 Town Warning; approximately 75 people attended. Selectboard members present were Laurie Cox, Ron 
Wimett and Dick Collitt. Moderator Timothy Hanson called the town portion of the meeting to order at 8:40 p.m. 
 
Before the meeting proper began, State Representative, Willem Jewett, spoke to the group about Education 
Committee discussions in Montpelier and fielded a few questions. At 8:56 pm, the moderator proceeded with the 
meeting and read the first article from the town warning. 
 
Article 1: Will the Town vote the sum of $732,302.25 to pay Road and General Fund expenses for January 

1, 2014 - June 30, 2015, and pay outstanding orders or obligations of the Town, with interest, the 
tax rate on the 2014 Grand List to be determined by the Selectboard, divided as follows: Roads 
(including winter work): $349,650.00, General Fund Costs: $382,652.25, Total: $732,302.25. 

The article was moved and seconded by Carol Ford and Barry King. Selectboard chair, Laurie Cox noted that the 
budget covers an 18-month period as we transition from a calendar budget year to a July-June fiscal year as voted 
at last year’s town meeting. The budget is mostly level funded from the previous year, with the exception of some 
town building maintenance. Line items for income or expenses that occur on a regular basis are simply 1 ½ times 
the amount that would have been budgeted for one year. Items that occur less regularly were figured based on the 
number of occurrences of that income or expense in this particular 18-month period.  
 
The selectboard is negotiating a new agreement with Middlebury College because the previous 20-year agreement 
expired in 2013. Charles Billings asked for specifics, and Ms. Cox said that specific items cannot be discussed 
while negotiations are active, but that the general tone is cordial and positive. The college pays straight taxes on 
some of its properties; the agreement deals with the properties that are tax-exempt. The previous agreement 
included payments in lieu of taxes of both cash and services. Laura McIntosh requested that the ski program that 
the Ripton school has participated in as part of the previous agreement continue. 
 
Bryan Alexander asked about the sand pile being low and about the Baker Bridge study. The selectboard 
responded that more sand was recently purchased, and the bridge study report is available by e-mail by making a 
request to the selectboard clerk, Alison Joseph [at selectboard@riptonvt.org]. Wendy Leeds asked about the 
budget item in the comparable table of revenues called “private road repair” and it was explained that that was a 
temporary line item to show payments from private road residents for their share of flood damage expenses not 
covered by grant funds. 
 
The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote, and Article 1 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Article 2: Will the Town vote the sum of $54,500.00 to Ripton Fire and First Response to help pay Fire 

Department and First Response expenses for January 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015? 
 
The article was moved and seconded by Barry King and Richard Ruane. Fire Chief, Erik Eriksen, noted the fire 
department budget is also an 18-month transition budget. There were a record number of calls in 2013 – 72 
compared to an average of 35.  55 to 60 calls are being budgeted for 2014-15. 
 
Mr. Eriksen named new members to the fire department and noted that volunteers are always needed for many 
things. He noted the upcoming “cadet fire academy” for 14-17 year olds, paid for by the fire department, with an 
application deadline in April. 
 
Mac Cox asked about the location and function of fire hydrants in Ripton. There are 4 dry hydrants in ponds or 
rivers located on Fire Brook Road, Route 125 in the village, Robbins Crossroad, and at the Bread Loaf pond. 
 

mailto:selectboard@riptonvt.org


2 
 

The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote and Article 3 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Article 3: Will the Town have current property taxes collected by the Treasurer with a tax due date 

Thursday, November 6, 2014? 
 
The article was moved and seconded by Barry King and Richard Ruane. 
 
Laurie Cox noted that for many years, the tax due date is set for the first Thursday in November, though if the 
first Thursday is within the first 3 days of the month, it may be set for the following Thursday. 
 
Andrea Chesman asked how the penalty and interest charged for delinquent taxes is determined; she believes 
other towns charge differently. The selectboard and treasurer, Sally Hoyler, responded. The guidelines for 
charging penalty and interest are set out in state law; specifics within these guidelines or changes to them must be 
voted on by the town. Currently in Ripton, the delinquent tax collector charges up to the maximum allowed for 
the penalty, which is 8%. Interest is set at 1% per month; the law allows up to 1½ %. The penalty is paid directly 
to the collector of delinquent taxes as her income; the interest is town income. Together these sources of income 
cover the cost of collecting late taxes, including possible legal fees. Some towns set a penalty maximum that is 
less than 8%, have a grace period or graduated penalty schedule, and may pay their delinquent tax collector by 
salary instead of fees. These are the types of variations that must be voted on by the town. 
 
The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote, and Article 4 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Article 4: Shall the town accept and receive the assets of the Ripton Cemetery Association dissolved in 

2013? 
 
The article was moved and seconded by Barry King and Warren King. 
 
Charles Billings and Laurie Cox explained the development of the questions in Articles 4 and 5. Town records 
indicate that it was attempted in the past to dissolve the Ripton Cemetery Association, but there is no particular 
record that documents it. Following discussions at informational meetings and regular selectboard meetings in the 
fall of 2013, it was decided that the association meet and vote to disband, and turn cemetery assets and 
management over to the town. That was done. The options are for the selectboard to manage the cemeteries or 
create a cemetery commission to do so, and they chose to do the latter. Mr. Billings referred to pages 20-21 in the 
town report for more detailed information and survey results. 
 
Jeremy Grip asked if the assets included the actual real estate, and it was replied that the town owns the 
cemeteries already. Page 19 in the town report shows the cash assets to be a little under $7,000. 
   
The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote, and Article 4 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Article 5: Shall the Town establish a 5-member board of cemetery commissioners to oversee and manage  
  town cemeteries? 
 
The article was moved and seconded by Barry King and Richard Ruane. 
 
Laurie Cox reiterated now that the town is responsible for the cemeteries, the voters are being asked to create a 
commission to do the job. If this article passes, 5 cemetery commissioners will be elected the following day, 
March 4, by Australian ballot. Five people submitted petitions to run for these positions, and are on the ballot. 
Laurel Coburn asked why the commission has 5 members, and Charles Billings responded that results of the 
survey indicated enough interest for a 5 member board. 



3 
 

 
The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote, and Article 5 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Article 6:  Shall the Town of Ripton vote to add two additional selectboard members to bring the selectboard 

to five members with the two new members to serve terms of two years with one initial term to be 
one year so that the two year terms will be staggered? 

 
The article was moved and seconded by Barry King and Richard Ruane. 
 
Dick Collitt spoke to the article, stating that he was speaking as an individual, not as a selectboard member. He 
pointed out that this article came up a couple of years ago and was voted down. He noted that Ripton is a small 
town and feels that 95% of the work of the selectboard is very routine and does not require more than 3 members 
to do the job. Charles Billings asked why a larger board would be disadvantageous, and Mr. Collitt replied that 
more members may make the board less effective, that it would slow down their ability to deal with day to day 
problems with five members instead of three. He has heard that some other small towns that have increased the 
size of their selectboards have not had success with it. Rick Klein suggested that the success of our democracy is 
based in part on diversity, and with a larger board there is the opportunity for more opinions, more ideas, and 
more knowledge. 
 
Richard Ruane asked how open meeting law related to board size. Open meeting law states that a quorum of 
board members cannot discuss town business outside of a public meeting setting, so two members of a three 
member board must be careful not to have conversations about town business should they run into each other in a 
casual setting or communicate by phone or email. The selectboard said they are aware of this and do not let it 
happen. 
 
Laurie Cox commented that a 3-member board tends to force you to work for consensus, while people are more 
likely to accept disagreement with a 5-member board.   Ron Wimett and Laurie Cox said they would like to see 
people coming to meetings and taking interest. Ms. Cox added that it may be fine to have two more members on 
the board if they are interested and eager, concluding that she is not against it but not totally for it. 
 
Andrea Chesman agreed that the current board is doing a good job, but noted that without  new members working 
alongside experienced board members, a great deal of institutional memory will be lost if one or more 
experienced members retire.  Increasing the size of the board to transition in new leadership seems like a good 
idea. Charles Billings added that with only three members, it could be very difficult if two members left at the 
same time. Laurie Cox said that she and Ron Wimett have discussed this and will not intentionally leave at the 
same time. 
 
Bill McKibben said that there seems to be a strong argument for the efficiency of a small board for day to day 
business, and that the annual town meeting could be a time for the town to come together to decide the really 
important questions. 
 
Bryan Alexander noted that there was an article petition to bring this issue to a vote which proves that a lot of 
people want it. Jeremy Grip said that he thinks there are a lot of upsides to having a larger board - diversity, 
ensuring continuity by bringing new people along, more people to do the work so that all members don’t have to 
be at every meeting – but he has not heard enough about the disadvantages.  He does not see that it would be a 
problem to try it out, and if it doesn’t work, vote to return to three. 
 
The selectboard acknowledged that with only three members, they feel obligated to attend most meetings and 
miss very few. Michael Seligmann suggested that it must feel burdensome not to be able to take a vacation. Laurie 
Cox noted that if more than one member can’t make a certain regular meeting date, they can reschedule to another 
time.  With a 5-member board people are more likely to feel they don’t have to go to all the meetings. 
 



4 
 

Barry King and Tracey Harrington commented about the difficulty in recruiting volunteers, so there may not be 
enough interest to fill seats on a board. 
 
Perry Hanson said that he believes there are 5 people in Ripton who would be happy to serve on the selectboard. 
His experience on the school board has shown that 5 people can achieve many things, that it is good to have 5 
points of view.  Increasing board size is not about calling the current system bad, it’s about doing things 
differently - having more voice and bigger conversations about the things that need to be done. 
 
Barbara Nelson said that she has not found it cumbersome to have larger membership on boards. Term limits and 
rotation are important, and bringing in new members alongside experienced members is sensible and healthy.  
 
A few logistical questions were asked and answered. If any board member resigns during his or her term, the 
selectboard appoints a replacement until the next election. If this article passes, the new positions are thereby 
created and will be filled by election at the next town meeting (in one year), or at a special town meeting in the 
meantime. A special town meeting can be initiated by the selectboard or by voter petition. If no one runs for the 
new positions, they are to be filled by appointment.  
 
The moderator asked if the group was ready to vote, and a voice vote was indecisive. A paper ballot was 
requested and after approximately 12 people agreed by a show of hands, was carried out. Article 6 was defeated; 
the paper ballot outcome was 27 in favor and 41 against. 
 
 
Article 7:  Any other business proper to come before this meeting. 

Laurie Cox reported that Sand Hill Bridge will be replaced this spring, and closing/reopening dates for Route 125 
have been set: close Saturday, April 19 and open Monday, June 2. The recommended detour for local traffic is 
Upper Plains and Lower Plains Roads rather than the North Branch Road. The North Branch Road will be open, 
but it is situated in the construction area and delays are likely. 
 
Ms. Cox reminded dog owners to please license their dogs by the April 1 deadline. It is distracting and time 
consuming for town officials to continue to chase down unlicensed dogs after the due date.  
 
Barry King and Richard Ruane moved and seconded to adjourn; the town meeting adjourned at 10:45 p.m. The 
meeting will recess until 7:00 a.m. Tuesday, March 5, 2013 to vote for town officers and requests for town 
funding by Australian ballot. Polls in the Ripton town office are open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

 

Timothy Hanson   Sally Hoyler    Laureen Cox 
Moderator    Town Clerk    Selectboard Chair 
       
 
    

 


